
Brooklyn Board of Education
Meeting Agenda

Virtual & Central Office Community Room

April 26, 2023
7:00PM

Please click the link HERE to join the webinar:

Passcode: 989262 Webinar ID: 885 1548 9259

One tap mobile : +16469313860,,88515489259# US +13017158592,,88515489259# US (Washington DC)

Or Telephone: +1 646 931 3860 US +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) +1 305 224 1968 US +1 309 205
3325 US +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)

Mission: The Brooklyn Schools will foster a drive for learning within each student to reach his/her greatest potential. To
achieve this mission, the school will continually improve its educational programs and services to meet this community's
expectations for a quality education for all.

To support public participation the documents will be posted on the  Town of Brooklyn Website as well as the  Brooklyn
Public Schools Website. You are encouraged to send questions or comments to  buell@brooklynschools.org prior to the
meeting.

1. Attendance, Establishment of a Quorum, Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Comment

4. Approval of Minutes
a. March 22, 2023

5. Correspondence and Communication*
a. CAPPS Award Winners

i. Elliana Faucher
ii. Vincent Genna
iii. Tomas Gutierrez
iv. Finley Hamilton

b. Important upcoming events
i. May 8, 2023 - May 12, 2023: Staff/Teacher Appreciation Week
ii. May 10, 2023: 5:00 PM Informational Meeting for families regarding the reunification

protocol that would be used if there was ever a need
iii. May 10, 2023: 7:00 PM Tentative Town Hearing to discuss the Town’s Budget
iv. May 18, 2023: BES and BMS Art Shows
v. May 21, 2023: PTO Golf Tournament

vi. May 24, 2023 7:00 PM Tentative Town Meeting (Consider changing BOE Meeting
time)

vii. May 29, 2023 Memorial Day, Brooklyn Parade at 9:00 AM
viii. May 31, 2023 Chorus Concert
ix. June 8, 2023: BMS Music Trip
x. June 12, 2023: BES Fun Day (rain date 6/14/23)
xi. June 13, 2023: BMS Field Day
xii. June 15, 2023: 8th Grade Promotion (tentative)
xiii. June 16, 2023: 4th Grade Promotion (tentative)
xiv. June 16, 2023: Last Day of School, Early Release (tentative)

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88515489259?pwd=QlBKdWtZdE9ueFU1U0w5bDgzeUpWQT09
https://www.brooklynct.org/
http://www.brooklynschools.org/
http://www.brooklynschools.org/
mailto:buell@brooklynschools.org


6. Administrative Reports*
a. Brooklyn Enrollment Report
b. FY23 Financial Reports
c. BOE Transfer Request
d. Brooklyn’s Best

7. Board of Education Committee Reports

8. Board Representatives to other Committees

9. Old Business

10. New Business*
a. Annual Healthy Food Certification Statement for School Year 2023-2024
b. First Reading: Policy 9110

11. Public Comment

12. Adjournment

*Action Item

BOE April 26, 2023 Agenda - Page 2



The Board of Education
Town of Brooklyn
119 Gorman Road

Brooklyn, CT 06234

Mae Lyons, Board Chair Melissa Perkins-Banas, Vice-Chair
Justin Phaiah, Secretary Kayla Burgess
Isaias Sostre Rick Ives

Mission: The Brooklyn Schools will foster a drive for learning within each student to reach his/her
greatest potential. To achieve this mission, the school will continually improve its educational programs

and services to meet this community's expectations for a quality education for all.

The Brooklyn Board of Education held a meeting in the Central Office Community Room and
virtually on March 22, 2023 via Zoom. In attendance were Mrs. Lyons, Dr. Perkins-Banas, Mr.
Phaiah, Mrs. Burgess, and Mr. Ives. Mr. Sostre was absent. Mrs. Buell, Superintendent, and Mr.
Carey, Business Manager, were also present.

Also in attendance were Heather Tamsin, BMS Principal, Adam Bender, BMS Assistant
Principal, Paula Graef, BES Principal, and Mark Weaver, BES Assistant Principal, Mr. Gutierrez,
Athletic Director, Mrs. Dehls, Drama Director/Music Teacher, and Mr. Rewers, Coach/Physical
Education Teacher.

To support public participation the documents will be posted on the  Town of Brooklyn Website
as well as the  Brooklyn Public Schools Website.You are encouraged to send questions or
comments to  buell@brooklynschools.org prior to the meeting.

1. Attendance, Establishment of a Quorum, Call to Order

Mrs. Lyons stated that a Quorum has been established. Board members that were present:
Melissa Perkins-Banas, Justin Phaiah, Kayla Burgess, Rick Ives, and herself, Mae Lyons.
Isaias Sostre is absent.

Mrs. Lyons called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Comment

None

4. Approval of Minutes

a. February 22, 2023 BOE Regular Meeting Minutes

mailto:buell@brooklynschools.org


Motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes for February 22, 2023.
(Perkins-Banas/Burgess)
No discussion
Vote Count: 5, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

5. Correspondence and Communication

a. BMS Winter Sports Presentation

Mrs. Buell thanked everyone for being present. She stated that it is always nice to
see the students. Mrs. Buell told the students that the Board members were
present because they care about Brooklyn students and work hard for Brooklyn
Public Schools to be a great place. She told them that part of the monthly Board
meetings is Brooklyn’s Best and everyone has stated that it is the best part of the
meeting. Mrs. Buell stated that she and the Board enjoy the in-person student
presentations.

Mrs. Tamsin stated that the Boys and Girls Basketball players were present and
introduced Mr. Gutierrez, Athletic Director.

Mr. Gutierrez thanked the coaches, Mrs. Lessard, Girls Basketball Coach, and Mr.
Rewers, Boys Basketball Coach, for all their time and effort. He stated that Mrs.
Lessard could not be present for the Board meeting. The Girls Basketball team
had a great season, 5-5, and they were in the playoffs, played hard and
unfortunately did not win the playoffs.

Mr. Rewers stated that he enjoyed coaching both Boys Junior Varsity and Varsity
Basketball teams. He has been teaching high school the past few years and is now
at the middle school. He stated that the Junior Varsity team was 3-5-1. The Varsity
team ended the season 6-4. They won the last four games that sent them to the
playoffs and came up short against Griswold in the semi-finals. Mr. Rewers stated
that both teams had a rough start and after Christmas break both teams started to
play and work together as a team and played hard. He wanted to thank the parents
for getting the players at the school for 7 a.m. practices and for the boys getting
up early for the early practices.

The BOE handed out stickers that were made by the middle school staff to the
players that were present for the Board meeting. The Girls Basketball players that
were present and recognized were:

Finley Hamilton
Olivia White
Janelle Elliott
Safia McDonough

The Boys Basketball players that were present and recognized were:



Brayden Briere Jones
Brady Giradin
Eli Poh
Mason Wiesner
Nick Sorel
Brody Dexter
Zach Lackner
Griffen Tisler
Grason Fueller

Mrs. Buell thanked Mr. Gutierrez for his very strong presence, being an advocate
for the athletes at the games and all their hard work. She also thanked the
administrators for being present at the Board meeting.

b. BMS Drama Club

Mrs. Dehls, Drama Director/Music Teacher at Brooklyn Middle School, and the
Drama Club cast and crew dressed in their costumes for the production of the
Little Mermaid Jr. She stated that they have been working very hard for months.
Production is this Friday and Saturday at 7 p.m. Mrs. Dehls introduced the cast
and crew to the Board.

Mrs. Buell thanked all of them for all their hard work and told them all to have
fun with the production.

Mrs. Buell asked the winter athletes how many were playing in spring sports.
There were several hands raised. Mr. Gutierrez stated that there are over 100
athletes signed up for spring sports.

c. Math Pilot Presentation

Mrs. Graef stated that the Brooklyn Elementary School has been piloting math
programs for next year. Members of the committee are teachers from each grade
level as well as the math interventionist.

Programs that were piloted were i-Ready Classroom Mathematics and
Illustrative Mathematics. The program search process consisted of:

● Analysis of surrounding districts data
● reaching out to surrounding districts to see what programs they currently

use
● Reviewed edreports.org on alignment to standards and strength of

programs
● Identified highly rated programs and contacted representatives to acquire

materials to preview as a committee
● Selected top two programs to pilot
● Identified criteria specific to district needs



● Professional development with programs

Mr. Weaver stated that teachers would fill out a survey after each lesson with their
feedback of experiences and student progress. After piloting the two math
programs, the Math committee got together with Kelly Francis from Eastconn to
discuss the pros and cons of each program.

iReady Classroom Mathematics
Pros:

● Comprehension checks (paper or computer)
● Student-friendly math workbooks
● Rigorous lesson progression
● Turn & Talk math discussions
● Reasonable prep time
● Parent communication letters (for each unit)
● 95% correlation to SBAC performance
● Mix of whole/small group work & independent work in each lesson
● Layer of intervention built into the program

Cons:
● Level of rigor - lesson progression is challenging
● Diagnostic is quite lengthy
● Younger grades may need to share devices at times

Illustrative Mathematics
Pros:

● Children loved the games
● Small chunks of learning

Cons:
● A lot of preparation for centers
● Lacked explicit instruction
● Repetitive center work
● Not enough practice
● Centers didn’t match lesson
● Too fast-paced

Mr. Weaver discussed the Math pilot teacher feedback. The teachers leaned
towards iReady Classroom Mathematics liking the clear objectives, multiple
opportunities for critical thinking, working together. He stated that teachers stated
that there were challenges with Illustrative Mathematics.

Mrs. Graef discussed the Math pilot program recommendation and stated that the
pilot committee had completed one unit from the two programs and they are
recommending iReady Classroom Mathematics as it is a rigorous, comprehensive
K-4 program, meeting expectations for alignment with the CCS, and
incorporating diagnostics and interventions to meet the needs of all students.



Ms. Burgess asked if there was a group of teachers that piloted one program and
the other teachers piloted the second program or did teachers pilot both. Mrs.
Graef stated that teachers partnered in a grade level with one teacher piloting
iReady and the other piloting Illustrative Mathematics. Teachers were going to
each other’s classrooms and discussing what their experiences were with each of
the programs.

Mr. Weaver stated that the overall consensus was overwhelming for iReady.
Mrs. Graef stated the teachers initially liked Illustrative Math and then started to
shift towards iReady.

Mrs. Buell stated that administrators and the consultant wanted to make sure the
program meets the overall direction of the district and building and was answered
sufficiently and supports their decision.

Mrs. Burgess made a motion to adopt the iReady Mathematics curriculum for
Kindergarten through Grade 4 next year.
(Burgess/Perkins-Banas)
No discussion
Vote Count: 5, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

Mrs. Buell stated that materials can be ordered and ARP ESSER funds will be
used to purchase five years worth of materials for the new math curriculum in
both the middle and elementary schools.

d. Greenhouse Project - Paula Graef

Mrs. Graef discussed the process of how the Greenhouse Project was started.
They had a discussion a few years back and they visited The Learning Clinic to
see their greenhouse. A grant proposal was submitted in November of 2022 and
Brooklyn Schools was awarded the grant in December of 2022. They have
requested the permits with the Town of Brooklyn and are securing contractors and
volunteers. The final report is due July 20, 2024 and the timeline is through
August 31, 2024.

Mr. Weaver discussed the greenhouse specifications:
● 18ft x 36ft x 10.6ft
● Complete frame with 6mm polycarbonate twin-wall covering (10 year

warranty)
● (1) 3’ x 6’- 8” Plyco insulated door
● (2) J & D Exhaust Fans
● (2) J & D Motorized Inlet Shutters
● (1) Heating Thermostat
● (1) 2 Stage Cooling Stat



● (1) Modine HD75 High Efficiency Gas Unit Heater (Natural Gas or
Propane)

● (2) Horizontal Air Flow Fans
● Complete assembly instructions, and an electrical wiring diagram showing

details of all equipment connections

Mr. Weaver stated that the location of the greenhouse will be behind the gym,
which is adjacent to the STEAM classroom. There is access to electrical and
water and will require a concrete pad underneath the greenhouse for the
foundation.

Mrs. Graef stated that the greenhouse is a complete kit that will need to be
assembled. Mrs. Buell has already put out a request for the permits. The other
items that are needed: land will need to be graded, a trench for water and power, a
foundation for wheelchair accessibility, high school students would be able to
assemble the greenhouse, benches and tables, consumable materials, development
of the curriculum

Mrs. Lyons stated that she was reading an article about schools having students
taking the waste from lunch and composting it.

Mrs. Buell thanked both Mrs. Graef and Mr. Weaver for being there and for their
time and effort of putting this project together.

e. Thank you letter - Beagary Charitable Trust

Mrs. Buell stated that she sent a thank you letter to Ms. Morgan with the Beagary
Charitable Trust for their very generous gift of $5,000, which was part of the two
year grant for the Music Department.

f. Retirement Letter - Kathi Dumaine-Savage

Mrs. Buell stated that she received a retirement letter from Kathy
Dumaine-Savage, 5th Grade Teacher, effective June 16, 2023. Mrs. Buell stated
that she accepted her letter of retirement and thanked her for over 36 years of
service and dedication to the students and families of Brooklyn. Mrs. Buell and
the Board wish her well.

.
6. Administrative Reports

a. Brooklyn Enrollment Report - March

Mrs. Buell discussed the enrollment report. Brooklyn Elementary School went up
by 6. Brooklyn Middle School went up by 2. The high school enrollment went up
by 2. She stated that overall there was an increase of 10 students for enrollment.
The enrollment has gone from 1292 to 1302 for total enrollment.



b. FY23 Financial Reports

Mr. Carey discussed the financial report highlights with the Board. He stated that
the salaries line is showing $28,000 under budget and may change slightly having
more substitutes and paraprofessionals being hired. The benefit lines are getting
closer to what they should be, he has been analyzing this account and expects to
be approximately $138,000 under budget. The contribution line item is
approximately $30,000 under due to less staff being enrolled in health than
projected. He stated that repairs from the lightning strike are ongoing and have
received funds from CIRMA. The professional educational services line is
showing $106,000, which $70,000 is for speech services at Woodstock Academy.
Woodstock Academy now has speech services as part of their program and is
included with tuition. The high school tuition is showing under budget due to
more students choosing Woodstock Academy than projected for this year and this
year’s student enrollment will be next year’s tuition; tuition will be higher next
year. Also, more students chose the Vo-AG program and we are over budgeted for
that line. The electricity line is approximately $12,000 under budget due to the
savings with the solar panels.

Ms. Burgess asked if there are expenses that will offset the funds that are under
budgeted. Mr. Carey stated that there are still technology purchases that are
ongoing. The smaller expenditures will play out to the end.

Mrs. Buell stated that at this time of the year we are usually in the black than the
red. There are repairs being done as well as projects being completed. The boiler
project is complete and still needs to have a maintenance contract put in place.
She stated there is an outstanding item where the preschool wing is not tied into
the new energy management system and the software is no longer available on the
preschool system. Mrs. Buell stated that if funds are available, she would like to
get the preschool system updated. Other projects being worked on are resurfacing
the gym floor at the elementary school and looking at the floor at the middle
school, the stage floor in both schools need to be resurfaced, replacing the stage
curtain at the elementary school, painting the gym walls at the middle school,
fixing blind spots on the cameras at the schools. These are items that have not
been maintained. Also, Mrs. Buells stated that if the school will be using the
Community Center, cameras and badge access will need to be added so the
building is secure. There is also a school safety grant that she is going to apply for
and there needs to be a local offset and some of these expenditures will count
towards the grant.

Mr. Ives asked if she had been looking at hiring a Facility Director. Mrs. Buell
stated that she will be starting the process.

Mrs. Buell stated security measures are still being put in place and that the HVAC
project is still in progress.



c. Brooklyn’s Best

BES
● We have begun positive office referrals. Staff send children displaying

BEAR qualities. This has been a huge success and children are loving the
positive feedback!

● The Ice Box persuasive writing challenge has been completed! Thank you
to the Ice Box for providing such a wonderful opportunity for our students
to have an actual audience for their writing.

● SBAC Vocabulary words presented through Morning Announcements -
words of the day are posted around the school for students to find.
Teachers follow-up and review words throughout their lessons. Words are
posted on a UA Hallway bulletin board.

● PreK held an ABC Hunt night for parents. It was well attended and
children did a great job locating ABC letters in all three classrooms!

● UA staff are visiting 3rd and 4th grade classrooms to learn about the
academic vocabulary to then incorporate the vocabulary into their
instruction.

BMS
● Good Cookie February 2023:

Grade 5: King/DS/Desabota: Colin Bates
Carson/Nault: Mason Putnam

Grade 6: Lexie Young, Declan Harman
Grade 7: Kassidy Rosinski, McKenzie Gianquitti
Grade 8: Finley Hamilton, Tomas Gutierrez

● Related Arts Night was a huge success with over 200 people in
attendance! Mrs. Dumaine-Savage has her 5th grade ELA groups join the
event presenting their Wax Museum activity and research.

● Thank you to the Danielson Lions Club for supporting our Pasta Dinner
Fundraiser on March 23.

● We are excited about the performance of Little Mermaid Jr. on March 24
and March 25. The cast has worked for many months preparing for this!

● We have had 30+ students signed up for each Spring sport. Tryouts begin
the week of March 20th.

7. Board of Education Committee Reports

None to report

8. Board Representatives to Other Committees

None to report

9. Old Business



a. Budget FY24

Mrs. Buell stated that the Brooklyn Board of Education approved the budget for
the 2023-2024 school year. The Brooklyn Board of Education budget for the
2023-2024 school year is $21,635,600 or 5.33% increase over the 2022-2023
school year. She handed out a finalized budget packet to the Board.

Mrs. Buell stated that the budget documents are posted on the Brooklyn Schools
website at www.brooklynschools.org and Town’s website at www.brooklynct.org.

b. SPF Youth Survey

Mrs. Buell stated that the SPF Youth survey is a SERAC survey that middle
school students would be taking.The survey helps gauge what interventions or
supports are needed in Brooklyn. She stated that it is a choice for students to take
the survey. It would be for 7th and 8th grade students and it is part of what
initiated the multi-health support at area districts. This survey has not been given
in approximately five years. The Board discussed the survey.

The Board stated that parents need to be aware that the survey will be given to the
students. The survey is helpful in getting grant funds and if parents have concerns
to contact the school. There is potential value in taking the survey.

10. New Business

a. Capital Projects

Mrs Buell discussed the Capital projects for the 2023-2024 school year with the
cost being approximately $20,000. She would like concrete sidewalks behind the
3rd and 4th grade wing for students to utilize for parent drop-off/pick-up,
blacktop repairs outside the elementary gym area, a flatbed utility trailer that can
be hooked up to the pick-up truck.

Mr. Ives asked about needing a new tractor that was discussed previously. Mrs.
Buell stated that buying a new tractor is costly and if you maintain a John Deere
tractor, it will last a long time and be more cost effective. They will look at
replacing tires and parts to the John Deere tractor the school currently has.

Mrs. Buell stated that the Planning and Zoning Board approved the
condominiums that will be going in at the end of Louise Berry Drive and possibly
more going in by the golf course. She stated that in a couple of years, Brooklyn
Public Schools will be running out of room for students and other discussions will
be happening. She stated that parking is already a challenge for staff due to
leaving spaces open for parents to get through for student drop-off and pick-up.

http://www.brooklynschools.org


11. Public Comment

None

12. Executive Session

a. Attorney Privileged Communication

Dr. Perkins-Banas made a motion to enter into executive session at 8:36 p.m. to
discuss the Attorney privileged communication and invite Mrs. Buell,
Superintendent. There will be no further action taken once the executive action
ends.
(Perkins-Banas/Ives)
No discussion
Vote Count: 5, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

Dr. Perkins-Banas made a motion to come out of executive session at 9:02 p.m.
(Perkins-Banas/Phaiah)
No discussion
Vote Count: 5, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

13. Adjournment

Motion to adjourn at 9:03 p.m.
(Perkins-Banas/Burgess)
No Discussion
Vote Count: 5, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

Respectfully Submitted,

Donn� L . DiBenede��

Donna L. DiBenedetto
Board Clerk

____________________________________ _______________
Justin Phaiah, Board of Education Secretary Date



**Enrollment Report 2022-2023

Brooklyn Public Schools Enrollment 2022-2023 4/17/2023

3

2019-20 1342 1343 1344 1345 1348 1342 COVID last day 3/13/2020
2020-2021

1260 1242 1243 1246 1245 1227 1230 1244 1251 1251

2019-20 1342 1342
2020-2021* 1260 1251

BES Grade
Level, Sections Pre-K K First Second Third Fourth Total

534

BMS Grade
Level, Sections Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth Total

361

Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Total

Total by Grade 390

OUT OF DISTRICT STUDENTS (not counted in totals above)

Homeschooled
20-21

PK AM Class 1 17 18 17 18 19 17 106
PK PM Class 1 16 18 17 19 20 20 110
PK AM Class 2 16 19 16 19 20 20 110
PK PM Class 2 16 18 15 18 20 19 106
PK AM Class 3 17 15 18 19 19 88
PK PM Class 3 17

Total in person 99 73 80 92 98 95
Homeschooled 1 0 3 3 2 2 11

18 21 21 19 79
18 20 22 18 78
20 22 22 20 84
20 21 20 21 82
18 20 38

Total in person 94 84 105 78 - -
Homeschooled 2 3 4 7 16

67 41 52 57 217

25 11 21 33 90

5 0 3 0 8

1 0 1 0 2

0 0 1 0 1

1 2 2 6 11

9 13 16 17 55

2 0 3 1 6

110 67 99 114

18

27 35 47 27 50 61 61

High School Stud
Woodstock
Academy
Killingly High
School
Killingly Ag
Science
Plainfield High
School
Putnam High
School
Norwich Free
Academy
Ellis Technical
High School
Quinebaug
Middle College

Act
**LEARN Magnet
School

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL BROOKLYN STUDENT ENROLLMENT PK-21 1303
Total Enrollment Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
2017-18 1314 1314 1311 1304 1310 1312 1311 1318 1319 1320
2018-19 1332 1336 1327 1326 1325 1325 1320 1333 1338 1339

2021-22 1258.5 1270.5 1275.5 1282.5 1281.5 1280.5 1282.5 1279.5 1281.5 1283.5

53 53 53
19 22
32 20 22 22 24 27 27 27

Sept June
2017-18 1314 1320
2018-19 1332 1339

2021-22 1274 1283.5
1305

(COVID, In/Opt
Out)

2022-2023 1305 1298 1294 1291 1290 1292 1302 1303

2022-2023

21-22
22-23



Brooklyn Projection 2022-2023.xlsx April 19, 2023

1

Account Name

Total Salaries

Total Benefits

Total Prof. Services

Total Contracted Services

Budget 22-23 Transfers Budget 22-23 Ytd Expended Encumbered Total Exp/Encum Balance % Exp/Encum

1100 $821,699.00 $ - $821,699.00 $672,866.26 $176,945.27 $849,811.53 -$28,112.53 103%
1103 $95,000.00 $ - $95,000.00 $63,113.94 $6,750.00 $69,863.94 $25,136.06 74%
1104 $20,000.00 $ - $20,000.00 $39,441.78 $ - $39,441.78 -$19,441.78 197%
1105 $23,373.00 $23,373.00 $ - $16,601.34 $ - $16,601.34 $6,771.66
1110 $1,128,075.00 $ - $1,128,075.00 $828,085.29 $234,064.76 $1,062,150.05 $65,924.95 94%
1111 $5,461,985.00 -$23,373.00 $5,485,358.00 $3,928,029.99 $1,641,849.83 $5,569,879.82 -$107,894.82 102%
1112 $1,110,808.00 $ - $1,110,808.00 $839,547.14 $269,998.07 $1,109,545.21 $1,262.79 100%
1119 $5,760.00 $ - $5,760.00 $5,792.52 $ - $5,792.52 -$32.52 101%
1129 $17,280.00 $ - $17,280.00 $16,545.31 $ - $16,545.31 $734.69 96%
1130 $2,000.00 $ - $2,000.00 $6,685.32 $ - $6,685.32 -$4,685.32 334%
1151 $53,690.00 $ - $53,690.00 $24,420.00 $9,909.00 $34,329.00 $19,361.00 64%
1152 $7,500.00 $ - $7,500.00 $2,658.75 $ - $2,658.75 $4,841.25 35%

2110 $1,774,190.00 $ - $1,774,190.00 $1,414,669.14 $239,520.86 $1,654,190.00 $120,000.00 93%
2115 $104,410.00 $ - $104,410.00 $76,860.46 $17,468.34 $94,328.80 $10,081.20 90%
2120 $193,750.00 $ - $193,750.00 $164,479.16 $ - $164,479.16 $29,270.84 85%
2200 $286,086.00 $ - $286,086.00 $212,080.55 $64,955.64 $277,036.19 $9,049.81 97%
2300 $266,828.00 $ - $266,828.00 $266,828.00 $ - $266,828.00 $ - 100%
2510 $15,000.00 $ - $15,000.00 $9,063.00 $ - $9,063.00 $5,937.00 60%
2600 $35,000.00 $ - $35,000.00 $ - $ - $ - $35,000.00 0%
2700 $85,943.00 $ - $85,943.00 $85,926.89 $ - $85,926.89 $16.11 100%
2800 $19,293.00 $ - $19,293.00 $14,861.29 $5,236.99 $20,098.28 -$805.28 104%

3000 $ - $ - $ - -$13,651.39 $ - -$13,651.39 $13,651.39
3020 $25,000.00 $ - $25,000.00 $20,250.50 $4,749.50 $25,000.00 $ - 100%
3200 $171,585.00 -$18,000.00 $189,585.00 $71,035.21 $10,964.74 $81,999.95 $89,585.05 43%
3230 $2,500.00 $ - $2,500.00 $ - $ - $ - $2,500.00 0%
3400 $55,800.00 $10,000.00 $45,800.00 $35,302.50 $4,468.00 $39,770.50 $16,029.50 87%
3410 $28,465.00 $ - $28,465.00 $11,000.00 $4,965.00 $15,965.00 $12,500.00 56%
3500 $32,800.00 $ - $32,800.00 $25,423.47 $3,852.00 $29,275.47 $3,524.53 89%
3520 $13,475.00 $8,000.00 $5,475.00 $11,632.00 $ - $11,632.00 $1,843.00 212%
3540 $5,000.00 $ - $5,000.00 $2,825.28 $ - $2,825.28 $2,174.72 57%

4101 $15,000.00 $ - $15,000.00 $9,959.41 $2,710.15 $12,669.56 $2,330.44 84%
4300 $22,000.00 $ - $22,000.00 $14,664.83 $324.52 $14,989.35 $7,010.65 68%
4301 $40,000.00 $ - $40,000.00 $43,423.38 $129,492.40 $172,915.78 -$132,915.78 432%
4302 $16,500.00 $ - $16,500.00 $14,191.39 $961.25 $15,152.64 $1,347.36 92%
4303 $17,000.00 $ - $17,000.00 $12,025.94 $7,398.82 $19,424.76 -$2,424.76 114%
4320 $6,000.00 $ - $6,000.00 $1,014.40 $ - $1,014.40 $4,985.60 17%
4411 $27,836.00 $ - $27,836.00 $18,911.68 $11,297.32 $30,209.00 -$2,373.00 109%
4430 $58,000.00 $ - $58,000.00 $24,524.44 $14,296.19 $38,820.63 $19,179.37 67%

ADMINISTRATORS SALARY
SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS
SUBSTITUTE PARAPROFESSIONALS
SALARIES- INTERN SUPPORT STAFF
SUPPORT STAFF (SEC., CUST., NURSE)
TEACHERS
PARAPROFESSIONALS
ESY TEACHERS
ESY PARAPROFESSIONALS
CUSTODIAL OVERTIME
STIPENDS
TECHNOLOGY (SUMMER)

HEALTH INSURANCE
DENTAL INSURANCE
H.S.A. CONTRIBUTIONS
FICA/MEDICARE
PENSION/RETIREMENT
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT
UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION
WORKERS COMPENSATION
LIFE INSURANCE

INS CLAIM - LIGHTNING STRIKE
BOARD OF ED - LEGAL
PROFESSIONAL ED SERVICES
PUPIL SERVICES
OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AUDIT
TECHNICAL SERVICES
OTHER TECHNICAL SERVICES
SPORTS OFFICIALS

REFUSE REMOVAL
EQUIPMENT REPAIRS
BUILDING MAINTENANCE
FIRE/SECURITY MAINTENANCE
GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
TECHNOLOGY RELATED REPAIRS
WATER/SEWER
RENTAL OF EQUIPMENT - COPIERS

1000 $8,747,170.00 $ - $8,747,170.00 $6,443,787.64 $2,339,516.93 $8,783,304.57 -$36,134.57

2000 $2,780,500.00 $ - $2,780,500.00 $2,244,768.49 $327,181.83 $2,571,950.32 $208,549.68

3000 $334,625.00 $ - $334,625.00 $163,817.57 $28,999.24 $192,816.81 $141,808.19

4000 $202,336.00 $ - $202,336.00 $138,715.47 $166,480.65 $305,196.12 -$102,860.12



Brooklyn Projection 2022-2023.xlsx April 19, 2023

2

5100 $781,333.00 $ - $781,333.00 $453,313.40 $388,809.00 $842,122.40 -$60,789.40 108%
5110 $227,424.00 $ - $227,424.00 $190,212.00 $148,174.00 $338,386.00 -$110,962.00 149%
5130 $39,661.00 $ - $39,661.00 $27,556.25 $ - $27,556.25 $12,104.75 69%
5150 $26,400.00 $ - $26,400.00 $5,609.00 $ - $5,609.00 $20,791.00 21%
5200 $74,753.00 $ - $74,753.00 $74,746.00 $ - $74,746.00 $7.00 100%
5300 $12,440.00 $ - $12,440.00 $10,126.69 $2,709.55 $12,836.24 -$396.24 103%
5301 $3,300.00 $ - $3,300.00 $2,398.22 $82.08 $2,480.30 $819.70 75%
5400 $6,950.00 $ - $6,950.00 $6,710.72 $ - $6,710.72 $239.28 97%
5600 $4,682,351.00 $ - $4,682,351.00 $3,665,710.50 $854,220.19 $4,519,930.69 $162,420.31 97%
5610 $28,960.00 $ - $28,960.00 $31,190.84 $23,393.16 $54,584.00 -$25,624.00 188%
5630 $921,151.00 $ - $921,151.00 $613,045.30 $313,570.03 $926,615.33 -$5,464.33 101%
5640 $892,148.00 $ - $892,148.00 $639,200.32 $286,119.41 $925,319.73 -$33,171.73 104%
5650 $68,014.00 $ - $68,014.00 $13,020.00 $21,390.00 $34,410.00 $33,604.00 51%
5800 $14,500.00 $ - $14,500.00 $1,954.02 $384.68 $2,338.70 $12,161.30 16%
5910 $28,000.00 $ - $28,000.00 $29,593.00 $ - $29,593.00 -$1,593.00 106%

6100 $62,645.00 $ - $62,645.00 $59,340.83 $698.38 $60,039.21 $2,605.79 96%
6110 $66,940.00 $ - $66,940.00 $64,958.60 $ - $64,958.60 $1,981.40 97%
6120 $25,135.00 $ - $25,135.00 $20,299.05 $531.34 $20,830.39 $4,304.61 83%
6220 $89,547.00 $ - $89,547.00 $40,411.10 $36,628.90 $77,040.00 $12,507.00 86%
6230 $1,500.00 $ - $1,500.00 $ - $ - $ - $1,500.00 0%
6240 $96,663.00 $ - $96,663.00 $73,958.77 $22,704.23 $96,663.00 $ - 100%
6260 $93,176.00 $ - $93,176.00 $42,826.79 $21,771.26 $64,598.05 $28,577.95 69%
6400 $5,500.00 $ - $5,500.00 $5,099.09 $ - $5,099.09 $400.91 93%
6410 $46,125.00 $ - $46,125.00 $25,908.63 $ - $25,908.63 $20,216.37 56%
6420 $6,635.00 $ - $6,635.00 $2,569.56 $905.38 $3,474.94 $3,160.06 52%
6430 $2,723.00 $ - $2,723.00 $282.48 $ - $282.48 $2,440.52 10%
6500 $5,000.00 $ - $5,000.00 $416.56 $675.86 $1,092.42 $3,907.58 22%
6900 $20,580.00 $ - $20,580.00 $7,303.97 $514.08 $7,818.05 $12,761.95 38%

7345 $68,452.00 $ - $68,452.00 $27,479.04 $1,574.03 $29,053.07 $39,398.93 42%
7350 $31,340.00 $ - $31,340.00 $2,835.00 $14,171.20 $17,006.20 $14,333.80 54%

8100 $34,195.00 $ - $34,195.00 $26,661.18 $ - $26,661.18 $7,533.82 78%

9140 $12,604.00 $ - $12,604.00 $1,786.70 $ - $1,786.70 $10,817.30 14%

TRANSPORTATION-REGULAR
TRANSPORTATION-SPECIAL ED
TRANSPORTATION-ESY

LIABILITY INSURANCE
COMMUNICATIONS
POSTAGE
ADVERTISING
TUITION-HIGH SCHOOL
TUITION-VO AG
TUITION-SPECIAL ED PRIVATE
TUITION-SPECIAL ED PUBLIC IN STATE

TRAVEL
ADULT EDUCATION

GENERAL SUPPLIES
INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES
ADMIN SUPPLIES
ELECTRICITY
PROPANE GAS
FUEL OIL
GASOLINE/DIESEL
BOOKS
TEXTBOOKS
LIBRARY BOOKS
PERIODICALS
TECHNOLOGY SUPPLIES
OTHER SUPPLIES

INSTRUCTIONAL EQUIPMENT
TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE

DUES & FEES

CONTINGENCY

TRANSPORTATION-FIELD TRIPS/ATHLET

TUITION-SPECIAL ED PRIVATE OUT OF S

5000 $7,807,385.00 $ - $7,807,385.00 $5,764,386.26 $2,038,852.10 $7,803,238.36 $4,146.64

6000 $522,169.00 $ - $522,169.00 $343,375.43 $84,429.43 $427,804.86 $94,364.14

7000 $99,792.00 $ - $99,792.00 $30,314.04 $15,745.23 $46,059.27 $53,732.73

8000 $34,195.00 $ - $34,195.00 $26,661.18 $ - $26,661.18 $7,533.82

9000 $12,604.00 $ - $12,604.00 $1,786.70 $ - $1,786.70 $10,817.30

1010 $20,540,776.00 $ - $20,540,776.00 $15,157,612.78 $5,001,205.41 $20,158,818.19 $381,957.81 98.00%

Total Other Services

Total Supplies

Total Equipment

Total Dues & Fees

Total Other





BROOKLYN’S BEST

Brooklyn Elementary School

● Grade levels met with the intervention team to discuss student data. The teams worked hard to develop
groupings to meet the needs of all of the children.

● Mr. March worked with the Arts for Learning Connecticut to bring some wonderful assemblies to our students.
The Arts for Learning Connecticut is a statewide nonprofit providing creative, cultural, curricular-aligned arts
programming in schools across CT.

● Congratulations to Ms. Gardner for passing all of her TEAM requirements! Well done!

Brooklyn Middle School

Good Cookie March

5th Grade King/DS/Desabota: Avery Dumas Carson/Nault: Madyson Schuck

6th Grade Christopher Speranza Sophia Nelson

7th Grade Ian Thayer Nina Purcell

8th Grade Cora Hefner Edward Purcell

● Planning a whole school Field Day
● Thank you to the PTO for supporting our Community Fitness Course by purchasing meals for teachers on

conference night!
● We have had a smooth start to Spring sports.
● Little Mermaid was a huge success! The students did an amazing job! Thank you to Mrs. Dehls for a job well done

supporting our students.
● Grade levels are planning end-of-year field trips
● We had community volunteers that came in to speak to our 7th-grade students regarding their immigration

experiences. The students learned a lot and were well-prepared for the panel.
● 4th Quarter after-school activities have started this week and we have over 40 students participating in addition to

our athletes.




